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HIGHLIGHTS 

 

PAWLET 

Bordering New York State and Bennington County, Vermont, in the southwest 

corner of Rutland County, the town of Pawlet retains a remarkable wealth of 

distinguished architecture, the product of a long and varied history. Situated on the 

western flank of the Taconic Range and drained by the Mettawee River and its 

tributaries, the town appears as a rolling plain interrupted by hills rising abruptly 500 

feet and more above the valley floor. Attracted by the promise of rich farmlands, 

settlers cleared the land beginning in 1762. After the Revolution, the pace of 

settlement quickened, and the town center, Pawlet village, began to grow around a 

mill and tavern where a road along Flower Brook from Danby intersected the 

Mettawee Valley Road (now VT Route 30). As crop yields lessened in the ensuing 

decades and smaller farms were turned into sheep pasture, many residents moved 

on. Those who stayed lived amid small communities with names such as North 

Pawlet, Buxton’s Flats, Orcutt’s Corners, and Spanktown. The Rutland and 

Washington Railroad, built in 1851 along the New York border with a depot at West 

Pawlet, brought only a mild boost to the local economy until a number of slate 

quarries were opened near the rail line in the 1870s. Then the village of West Pawlet 

rapidly expanded as a center for the slate industry. After 1910 the industry began a 

slow decline, leaving as its legacy the almost wholly Queen Anne style village of 

West Pawlet in a town otherwise filled with outstanding early 19th century 

farmhouses. 

 

DESPITE CONFLICTING LAND GRANTS issued by New York and New 

Hampshire for the same lands, by 1770 about a dozen families had established farms 

in Pawlet. During the next decade some Tory families had their farms confiscated, 

while other residents joined the fight for American independence. In 1777 a 

company of Pawlet militia guarded Mount Independence on Lake Champlain and 

later participated in the battles of Hubbardton and Bennington. In September of that 

year Pawlet was headquarters for some 2,000 Vermont volunteers who harassed the 

supply and garrison units of Burgoyne’s army across the border in New York 



After Burgoyne surrendered at Saratoga in October 1777, Pawlet veterans returned 

to their farms, and except for occasionally mustering until 1781 to man the fort at 

Castleton, they concentrated on improving their farmsteads and raising their 

families. After 1790 they began to replace their original cabins with more spacious 

homes. John Stark, captain of the Pawlet militia company and one of the original 

proprietors of the town, replaced his cabin c.1790 with a stately 2 story house (41) 

with a hip roof and central chimney. Pvt. Daniel Hulett replaced his cabin in 1793 

with a Cape Cod type home (49) and embellished it with an unusual, intricately 

denticulate doorway. Sgt. Ezekiel Harmon waited a little longer, but about 1795 he 

had an imposing Federal style home (C31) with Ionic pilasters and an entry sheltered 

by a broken pediment built just south of the evolving nucleus of Pawlet village. 

 

As the second most populous town in Rutland County in 1791, Pawlet attracted a 

number of professionals and rapidly attained a high degree of cultural refinement. 

The Congregationalists replaced a frame church of 1785 in the village with a grand 

Federal style building in 1798. Baptists in the west part of town followed suit in 

1800. (Both churches are no longer standing.) The master builder for these projects 

was the first person born in town (in July 1768), Titus A. Cook, who made his home 

(2, c.1800) close to the Pawlet town line near the growing village of Granville, New 

York. Known for constructing “the better class of dwellings,” Cook may have built 

the homes of Stark and Harmon, as well as a number of other high style, early houses. 

 

 

Indian Hill, said to be the site of a skirmish between English and French forces in 1 

760, is the backdrop for this Mettawee River valley farm (16) owned by the Brown 

family in the mid 19th century. The sophisticated Greek Revival style pavilion with 

ells plan house (c.1855) is noteworthy for its handsome porch with Italianate style 

chamfered columns and scroll sawn brackets. 
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